Zoom
TRPA

TAHOE REGIONAL PLANNING AGENCY
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM COMMITTEE

March 27, 2024

Meeting Minutes

CALL TO ORDER AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM
Chair Faustinos called the meeting to order at 9:15 a.m. on March 27, 2024.
Members present: Ms. Faustinos, Mr. Ferry, Ms. Hays, Ms. Conrad-Saydah, Ms. Williamson.

Members absent: Mr. Settelmeyer and Mr. Rice.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Ms. Caringer stated no changes to the agenda.

Chair Faustinos deemed the agenda approved as posted.
APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Ms. Williamson moved approval of the draft January 24, 2024 EIP Committee meeting
minutes as presented.

Motion carried by voice vote.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM OUTREACH UPDATE AND LAKE TAHOE
RESTORATION ACT PRIORITIES

Kat Mclintyre, Environmental Improvement Department Manager, began the presentation for
TRPA staff on the Environmental Improvement Program (EIP) outreach and an update on the

Lake Tahoe Restoration Act. She began by giving an overview of the topics and then handed it
over to Julie Reagon, TRPA Executive Director, to present on the EIP funding model and some
background on the Lake Tahoe Restoration Act (LTRA).

Julie Reagan began by emphasizing the importance of shared responsibility and funding for lake
restoration. She highlighted the historical context, starting with President Clinton and Vice
President Gore's visit in 1997, which led to the creation of the EIP. This program was driven by a
need to address past development and restore the lake, initiated by Jim Baetge, a former TRPA
leader. Julie noted the collaborative efforts involving federal, state, local, tribal governments,
and the private sector, resulting in nearly $3 billion in investments over 28 years. The initial goal
was $900 million, but the first decade saw over $1.1 billion invested, with significant
contributions from California and the federal government. She explained that consistent
funding, particularly from the Southern Nevada Public Land Management Act, was crucial for
sustaining projects. Ms. Reagan discussed the legislative milestones, including the 2000 Lake


https://www.trpa.gov/wp-content/uploads/Environmental-Improvement-Program-Committee-Agenda-Item-No-3-EIP-Outreach-Update-and-LTRA-Priorities.pdf
https://www.trpa.gov/wp-content/uploads/Environmental-Improvement-Program-Committee-Agenda-Item-No-3-EIP-Outreach-Update-and-LTRA-Priorities.pdf

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM COMMITTEE

March 27, 2024
Tahoe Restoration Act and its reauthorization in 2016, which authorized an additional $415
million over seven years. However, only $114 million has been appropriated so far. The current
focus is on extending the LTRA for 10 more years to utilize the remaining funds. She stressed the
importance of public-private partnerships and transparency in maintaining support and
achieving restoration goals, comparing Tahoe's efforts to other major national restoration
projects.

Kat Mclintyre highlighted the significant impact of the Lake Tahoe Restoration Act (LTRA) since
2016. She detailed various completed projects and their benefits:

o Forest Health: 37 projects completed, treating 21,000 acres, which helped manage
wildfire behavior during the Caldor Fire.

o  Water Infrastructure: 7 projects accelerated by LTRA and over 100 implemented by
local water districts to upgrade infrastructure crucial for firefighting.

e Water Quality: 39 projects completed, preventing over 500,000 pounds of fine
sediment and pollution from entering Lake Tahoe annually.

e Aguatic Invasive Species (AIS) Program: 15 projects completed, 51,000 boats inspected,
and 271 acres treated for AlS, addressing major infestations like the Tahoe Keys.

e Watershed Restoration: 17 projects completed, restoring 342 acres of wetlands,
including significant projects like Taylor Tallac Marsh and Upper Truckee River Marsh
Restoration.

Ms. Mclintyre noted that although Lahontan cutthroat trout and accountability projects are
eligible for LTRA funding, they have historically remained unfunded. She also emphasized the
community benefits, such as supporting 1,700 jobs annually and generating significant economic
output. The LTRA's $114 million investment has catalyzed over $500 million in state, local, and
private matching funds, demonstrating the leverage and extensive impact of federal funding on
the program.

Ms. Mclintyre outlined the upcoming priorities for various resource areas under the Lake Tahoe
Restoration Act:

e Forest Health: Focus on capacity building and innovation, including a pilot project with
the BIRNBOT for masticating and burning on small scales, prescribed burning training
with the Washoe Tribe and University of Nevada, Reno, and traditional projects like
fuels reduction and hazard mitigation in Washoe Meadows.

e Aguatic Invasive Species (AIS): Continuation of the Tahoe Keys control methods test,
emphasizing long-term planning. Ongoing surveillance and rapid response to maintain
weed-free status in treated areas. Efficacy monitoring for bubble curtains, a critical
containment method.

e Watersheds and Water Quality: Key projects include Burke Creek and Rabe Meadow
restoration to improve wetland habitat and hydrological connectivity, further
restoration phases for the Upper Truckee Marsh and River ecosystem, and the Tahoe
Valley Stormwater and Greenbelt Improvement Project, which aims to enhance
stormwater management, bike, and pedestrian infrastructure, and recreational
amenities.



ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM COMMITTEE
March 27, 2024
e Lahontan Cutthroat Trout: Despite being historically unfunded, priorities remain
reintroduction and performance evaluation, tributary assessments, and a
comprehensive species recovery and habitat restoration program, with significant
involvement from the Washoe Tribe.

She concluded by handing over to Kim Caringer to discuss the recent Washington DC trip.

Kim Caringer, TRPA Deputy Director and Chief Partnerships Officer, emphasized the importance
of the Lake Tahoe Restoration Act (LTRA) and the need for continued funding. She highlighted
the recent trip to Washington, DC, where a coalition of 22 representatives, including local
elected officials, members of the Washoe Tribe, the League to Save Lake Tahoe, and other
community organizations, met with Congress members. Their goal was to educate and inform
about the critical work being done in Lake Tahoe, thanks to the LTRA, and to stress the
importance of extending this funding source.

Ms. Caringer outlined the potential negative impacts if the LTRA is not extended, such as
reductions in forest restoration efforts, setbacks in water infrastructure projects, and delays in
achieving lake clarity goals. She emphasized the unity among public and private sectors in
supporting the LTRA and the significant progress that could be hindered without its
continuation. Ms. Caringer concluded by inviting board members who attended the trip to
discuss their takeaways and the ongoing support needed for the Environmental Improvement
Program (EIP) funding model and the LTRA extension.

Committee Member Questions/Comments

Chair Faustinos expressed gratitude for the informative presentation and admiration for the
team's work in Tahoe. He highlighted the impressive progress made over the years and how the
projects contribute to meeting threshold requirements and achieving goals. Faustinos
emphasized the difficulty of regional collaboration and commended the history and success of
the collaborative efforts in project implementation in Tahoe.

Ms. Conrad-Saydah thanked the presenters and asked how they account for the additional
benefits of the funding beyond just the acres treated. She suggested that highlighting these
broader benefits, which accrue to both the local community and the numerous visitors to Tahoe
each year, could help in extending appropriations.

Ms. Caringer explained that the Environmental Improvement Program (EIP) has a shared set of
performance measures that all project implementers use to track benefits. This includes
measures like acres treated, habitat protected or restored, and watershed restoration. These
performance measures help track projects that offer multiple benefits. She suggested that Kat
might provide additional details on how forest restoration benefits are tracked outside of these
performance measures.

Ms. Conrad-Saydah's question focused on effectively demonstrating the broader benefits of
funding for Tahoe projects during lobbying efforts. She emphasized the importance of showing
how the money, while spent locally, provides widespread benefits such as job creation,
recreational access, clean water, overall watershed improvement, and reduced smoke. She
stressed that it's crucial to highlight these extensive benefits to both states, beyond just the
acres treated.



ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM COMMITTEE

March 27, 2024
Ms. Reagan responded by acknowledging the complexity and importance of demonstrating the
comprehensive benefits of funding for Tahoe projects. She highlighted the significant effort it
took to establish a common set of performance measures among the 80 organizations involved,
including federal agencies, state entities, and local fire districts. This included defining terms like
"acres treated" and achieving consensus on how to measure and categorize various aspects of
the work.

She emphasized that while they have made substantial progress and established around 33
common performance measures, there is ongoing work to further enhance their approach,
particularly in terms of resilience and multi-benefit outcomes beyond just acres treated. Ms.
Reagan mentioned that their efforts also tie back to TRPA thresholds, integrating environmental
goals related to lake clarity, air quality, and recreation standards.

She pointed out that their program is comparable to other renowned restoration efforts like
those in Chesapeake Bay and Puget Sound, where they continually learn from and adapt best
practices supported by scientific evaluation through the Science Council.

Ms. Mcintyre emphasized the ongoing efforts to enhance their data collection and analysis
capabilities beyond the established performance measures. She mentioned discussions at recent
retreats about identifying additional data points that could better illustrate the impact of their
work. This includes collaborating with their GIS team to explore concepts like fire risk reduction
across landscapes and modeling the effectiveness of treatments.

She highlighted a recent scientific study conducted during the Caldor fire, which confirmed that
the treatments were effective in modifying wildfire behavior. Ms. Mclintyre stressed the
importance of ongoing engagement with the Tahoe Science Advisory Council and regional
scientists to ensure that their performance measures accurately reflect the positive impacts
they aim to achieve.

Ms. Reagan offered to share the 33 performance measures discussed earlier with the
committee, intending to upload them to the committee's website for public access. She also
proposed further exploration of multiple benefits, mentioning an economic study on jobs and
the multiplier effect, which could be discussed offline.

Ms. Conrad-Saydah expressed the importance of having concise bullet points to highlight the
comprehensive benefits of the Lake Tahoe Restoration Act when lobbying in Congress. She
emphasized the need to showcase how these benefits extend beyond the immediate Lake
Tahoe area to benefit regions across both states.

Ms. Gustafson shared her reflections on the recent trip to Washington DC, highlighting the
successful coordination by staff and partners, including the League to Save Lake Tahoe. She
praised the collaborative effort of 22 representatives from various sectors, emphasizing their
unified message on the importance of renewing the Lake Tahoe Restoration Act for securing
funding. She noted the broader discussions that arose, such as transportation funding, and
underscored the importance of sustained effort in legislative advocacy despite budgetary
challenges. She commended the organization and management of the trip, expressing
confidence in the ongoing alignment and success of their collective efforts.

Ms. Leumer expressed appreciation for the updates from Washington DC and inquired about
the next steps in the legislative process to advance the Lake Tahoe Restoration Act.



ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM COMMITTEE
March 27, 2024

Ms. Reagan responded by highlighting Senator Cortez Masto's commitment to advancing the
Lake Tahoe Restoration Act this year. She emphasized that the legislative effort is supported by
the entire Nevada delegation, with Senator Cortez Masto leading the charge. Various legislative
vehicles are being considered, including the Water Resources Development Act and potential
lands bills. The goal is to ensure funding continuity without any lapses, given the critical nature
of the projects funded by the Act. She expressed optimism about finding the right legislative
path forward with ongoing efforts in Washington DC.

Chair Faustinos expressed appreciation for the update from Ms. Reagan and emphasized the
importance of staying informed about the critical next steps in the legislative process. She
acknowledged the challenges of integrating the Lake Tahoe Restoration Act into other bills and
encouraged staff to keep the committee updated on these developments. She also highlighted
potential opportunities in both Nevada and California for continued funding through the EIP
program and mentioned the possibility of a climate bond in California. Ms. Leumer encouraged
ongoing advocacy to ensure Tahoe's priorities are recognized in state funding mechanisms. She
concluded by inviting other committee members to share their thoughts or ideas on how they
can contribute to the process.

Mayor Bass reflected on his experience during the DC trip, highlighting how eye-opening it was
to witness Tahoe's unique recognition and the importance of its protection. He noted the
positive shift in support from Congressman Kevin Kylie compared to his predecessor,
emphasizing his attendance at their press conference as a significant change. Mayor Bass
described the trip as a success and expressed pride in Tahoe's distinctiveness amidst larger city-
focused lobbying efforts. He concluded by stressing the importance of continuing their efforts
moving forward.

UPCOMING TOPICS

Kim Caringer outlined upcoming agenda items, including plans for a bi-monthly schedule for the
rest of the year. There's a proposal for a virtual project tour, with a possibility of an on-ground
tour depending on weather. The GIS team is preparing visuals of projects around the basin for
presentation. In July, focus will shift to improving the permitting process for environmental
projects at TRPA, aiming to streamline approvals across multiple agencies. Fall will feature the
evaluation of environmental thresholds, aligning with EIP priorities. Julie Regan thanked board
members for their support during the recent DC trip, emphasizing the diverse representation
and the distribution of materials highlighting the Lake Tahoe Restoration Act. These materials
are available on the EIP committee section of the TRPA website.

COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS

Chair Faustinos expressed gratitude for the committee's work, commending their efforts in
pulling together a comprehensive presentation. She acknowledged the challenges involved and
highlighted the importance of the upcoming summit. Chair Faustinos also mentioned her
intention to share the achievements discussed and expressed optimism for the successful
appropriation of the 72 million dollars for the Lake Tahoe Restoration Act.

Mr. Ferry, representing Supervisor Laine, praised the collaborative efforts across various levels
of the EIP and local committees. He highlighted the extensive coordination involved in planning,
funding, permitting, and implementing projects within Lake Tahoe's Environmental



ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM COMMITTEE

March 27, 2024
Improvement Program (EIP). Mr. Ferry expressed admiration for the dedicated work of staff
members such as Kat and Kim in facilitating local coordination. He emphasized the significance
of the EIP in Tahoe, contrasting it with the CIP on the west slope, and underscored the ongoing
commitment to delivering EIP projects despite uncertainties surrounding the LTRA
reauthorization. Specifically, he mentioned upcoming projects like the Pioneer Trail roundabout
and the Apache Avenue complete street project, inviting feedback on the environmental
document for the greenway's next phase.

VI. PUBLIC INTEREST COMMENTS

Darcie Collins from the League to Save Lake Tahoe, and co-chair of the Communications and
Funding EIP Committee, emphasized the success of the recent trip to DC, echoing sentiments
shared by Ms. Reagan, Ms. Caringer, Supervisor Gustafson, and Mayor Bass. She highlighted the
diversity of stakeholders involved in advocating for Lake Tahoe, acknowledging the significant
effort and collaboration required to organize such a trip. Darcie noted the bipartisan support
received from all delegates, emphasizing Tahoe's unified voice in seeking support for the
extension of the Lake Tahoe Restoration Act. Looking ahead, Darcie discussed next steps once
the extension is secured, focusing on seeking additional funding opportunities at federal, state,
and local levels to address gaps in the Environmental Improvement Program. She underscored
the League's longstanding support for the Restoration Act and its commitment to enhancing
messaging to demonstrate the impact of investments in Lake Tahoe.

Ellie Waller expressed appreciation for the presentations given during the meeting, particularly
highlighting the update on the Lake Tahoe Restoration Act. She requested that the 22-member
team who represented the Lake Tahoe Basin during their trip be publicly listed for transparency.
Ellie also inquired about a tentative date for the upcoming summit, seeking clarification on
when this event might take place.

Chair Faustinos responded that there is currently no set date for the upcoming summit. She
noted that once a date is determined, the information will be widely distributed to all interested
parties.

VII. ADJOURNMENT

Ms. Williamson moved to adjourn. The meeting was adjourned 10:05 a.m.

Respectfully Submitted,

Ul

Katherine Huston
Paralegal, TRPA

The above meeting was recorded in its entirety. Anyone wishing to listen to the recording may find it at
https.//www.TRPA.gov/meeting-materials/. In addition, written documents submitted at the meeting
are available for review. If you require assistance locating this information, please contact the TRPA at

(775) 588-4547 or virtualmeetinghelp@TRPA.qgov.



https://www.trpa.gov/meeting-materials/
mailto:virtualmeetinghelp@trpa.gov

